
 
 

 

 To: Councillor Jean Morrison MBE, Convener; and Councillors Cooney, Delaney, 
Donnelly, Jackie Dunbar, Finlayson and McCaig. 

 
Town House, 

ABERDEEN 23 April 2013 
 

ZERO WASTE MANAGEMENT SUB COMMITTEE 
  
Members of the ZERO WASTE MANAGEMENT SUB COMMITTEE are requested to 
meet in Committee Room 4 - Town House on TUESDAY, 30 APRIL 2013 at 2pm. 
 
 

JANE G. MACEACHRAN 
HEAD OF LEGAL AND DEMOCRATIC SERVICES 

 
B U S I N E S S 

 
1 Apologies   

 
2 Determination of Exempt Item of Business   

 
3 Minute of Previous Meeting of 5 December 2012  (Pages 1 - 2) 

 
4 Internal Waste Minimisation Policy - referred for information by the Enterprise, 

Planning and Infrastructure Committee of 19 March 2013  (Pages 3 - 38) 
 

5 Update on the Business Case for Energy from Waste (Pages 39 - 42) 
 

6 Update on Waste Management Services Contract Variation  (Pages 43 - 46) 
 

7 Draft Communication Plan  (Pages 47 - 60) 
 

8 Date of Next Meeting - 18 June 2013   
 

 ITEM THE COMMITTEE MAY WISH TO CONSIDER IN PRIVATE 
 

9 Sites for Waste and Recycling Infrastructure  (Pages 61 - 100) 
 

Website Address: www.aberdeencity.gov.uk 
If you require any further information about this agenda, please contact Lynsey McBain, tel. 
522123 or email lymcbain@aberdeencity.gov.uk   
 

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



 
ZERO WASTE MANAGEMENT SUB COMMITTEE 

  
 ABERDEEN, 5 December, 2012 - Minute of Meeting of the ZERO WASTE 

MANEGEMENT SUB COMMITTEE.  Present:  Councillor Jean Morrison 
MBE (Convener); and Councillors Cooney, Delaney, Donnelly, Jackie 
Dunbar, Finlayson and McCaig. 

 
 
 
 
MINUTE OF PREVIOUS MEETING 
 
1. The Sub Committee had before it, the minute of the previous meeting of 3 
October, 2012. 
 
The Sub Committee resolved:- 
to approve the minute as a correct record. 
 
 
 
OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE FOR WASTE TREATMENT FACILITIES 
 
2. With reference to article 3 of the minute of the previous meeting, the Sub 
Committee had before it, an update in relation to the Zero Waste Management 
Project, which advised that full Council had approved recommendations in the 
Outline Business Case with one addendum. 
 
With reference to article 14 of the minute of Council of 10 October 2012, the report 
advised that the addendum agreed at Council was to instruct officers to engage 
fully with Aberdeen’s citizens and communities throughout the process of the Zero 
Waste Management Project and the procurement of a local Energy from Waste 
Combined Heat and Power plant for Aberdeen. 
 
The report went on to explain that since the approval at Council, work had 
progressed in a number of areas, which included the project resources and 
structure and the delivery of resources.  Also included was an outline work 
programme which advised of the estimated duration of the various stages of the 
project. 
 
The report recommended:- 
that the Sub Committee note the contents of the report. 
 
The Sub Committee resolved:- 
to note the content of the report. 
 
 
 
ANY OTHER COMPETENT BUSINESS 
 
3. The Convener declared the meeting open for any other competent business,  
whereby Councillor Dunbar asked if there was any update on the Hazlehead 
Recycling Centre.  Pete Lawrence provided an update whereby he explained that a 

Agenda Item 3

Page 1



 2

tree survey had recently been undertaken and work had also been carried out on 
assessing noise levels, which would be progressed in due course.  Pete also 
advised that the design of the centre had been agreed and would go out to tender 
in the next few weeks, with work due to commence in March 2013 with an 
anticipated completion date of October 2013. 
 
Finally, the Convener raised the issue of recycling facilities within Council buildings. 
The Sub Committee discussed the lack of recycling facilities in the Town House, 
and other Aberdeen City Council offices and noted that at present there were no 
facilities for recycling bottles, glass, plastic containers and food waste, and further 
that paper material that was shredded was not recycled but included in the 
industrial waste bins.  Peter Lawrence, Waste and Recycling Manager, advised that 
a report was currently being prepared which would be submitted to the Enterprise, 
Planning and Infrastructure Committee in March 2013, which would present a new 
policy to be implemented by the end of 2013 to take account of new legislation. 
Officers advised that whilst some costing work had been undertaken, they were not 
aware of the full extent of this.    
 
Members expressed concern that this issue had previously been raised on a 
number of occasions; however no action had been taken to date. 
 
The Sub Committee resolved: 
to refer the matter to the Finance and Resources Committee of 6 December, to 
request that it be included as part of the budget process. 
 
 
DATE OF NEXT MEETING 
 
4. The Sub Committee noted that the next meeting was due to be held on 
Wednesday 27 February 2013 at 2pm. 
- COUNCILLOR JEAN MORRISON MBE, Convener. 

Page 2



 
ENTERPRISE, PLANNING AND INFRASTRUCTURE COMMITTEE 

 
19th MARCH 2013 

 
 
INTERNAL WASTE MINIMISATION POLICY – EPI/13/010 
 
22. The Committee had before it a report by the Director of Enterprise, 
Planning and Infrastructure which proposed that the Council moves to a more 
sustainable way of managing waste from Council premises and service 
operations and outlined the requirements of the Waste (Scotland) Regulations 
2012. 
 
The report recommended:- 
that the Committee – 
(a) note the contents of the proposed Internal Waste Minimisation Policy, 

and refers this to the Corporate Policy and Performance Committee for 
approval; 

(b) instruct officers to establish a plan of waste minimisation actions in 
2013 and report back to Committee with an annual review of corporate 
waste measures; 

(c) approve the actions and timeline for meeting the requirements of the 
Waste (Scotland) Regulations 2012; and 

(d) instruct officers to refer the Internal Waste Minimisation Policy to the 
Zero Waste Management Sub-Committee for information. 

 
The Committee resolved:- 
(i) to approve the recommendations; and 
(ii) that officers be instructed to look at ways of improving recycling 

collections at schools and community centres. 
 

Agenda Item 4

Page 3



Page 4

This page is intentionally left blank



 

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
COMMITTEE   Enterprise, Planning & Infrastructure  
    
DATE     19 March 2013     
 
DIRECTOR    Gordon McIntosh      
 
TITLE OF REPORT  Internal Waste Minimisation Policy   
 
REPORT NUMBER  EPI/13/010        
 
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 

The purpose of this report is to present an Internal Waste Minimisation 
Policy (IWMP), which recommends the Council moves to a more 
sustainable way of managing waste from Council premises and service 
operations and outlines the requirements of the Waste (Scotland) 
Regulations 2012.  

 
2. RECOMMENDATION(S)  

It is recommended that the Committee: 
a) notes the contents of the proposed Internal Waste 
 Minimisation Policy, and refers this to the Corporate Policy & 
 Performance Committee for approval. 
b)  Instructs officers to establish a plan of waste minimisation 
 actions in 2013 and report back to committee with an annual 
 review of corporate waste measures. 
c) Approves the actions and timeline for meeting the requirements 
 of the Waste (Scotland) Regulations 2012. 
d) Instructs officers to refer the Internal Waste Minimisation Policy 
 to the Zero Waste Management Sub Committee for 
 information. 
  

3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  
The IWMP aims to minimise waste arising and waste to landfill. A 
sustainable approach to managing council waste will look to prevent 
and reduce waste arising as measures before recycling. This will have 
economic benefits, with a reduction in wasted materials and waste 
collection costs.  
The introduction of the Waste (Scotland) Regulations 2012 will require 
an increase in recycling for key waste stream (paper, card, glass, metal 
and plastic) produced in corporate premises by 1 January 2014. In 
2011/12, 6750 tonnes of waste from corporate buildings, including; 
offices, libraries, schools, community centres was sent to landfill at a 

Page 5



 

cost of around £523,987. Taking into account disposal costs for the 
remaining waste streams from these premises, such as clinical waste, 
the total waste cost for corporate buildings within Aberdeen City 
Council is in the region of £582,968. 
Increasing landfill costs mean that waste disposal is not a cost effective 
means of waste management.  Landfill tax on the disposal of waste is 
currently £64 per tonne (2012/13), rising to £80 a tonne by 1 April 
2014. 
Dry recyclates are currently mixed with operational waste, from service 
operations including; street cleansing, fleet, building services and road 
and street lighting with any segregation carried out by the contractor 
alongside other waste streams. Services are charged per uplift from 
depots with a further disposal charge which is to cover recycling or 
tipping charges, gate fees and landfill tax. Skip collections cost the 
Council £532,000. 
An initial financial impact from the Waste (Scotland) Regulations 2012 
may be seen in the one off cost of additional internal and external 
waste containers and added recycling collections. It is anticipated these 
costs will be met from existing budgets. The IWMP encourages a 
reduction in residual bin, numbers, size and/ or frequency of collection 
alongside introduction of any new recycling facilities to make cost 
savings on the volume of waste to landfill. 
As a comparison, the cost of Aberdeen City Council’s Collections 
Service Section trade waste charges from 1 October 2012 include a 
cost of £19.43 per bin for an uplift of residual waste in a 1280 litre bin, 
the cost for paper recycling in the same sized container is £4.48. 
Proposed trade waste charges for 2013/14 aim to encourage recycling, 
with a reduced rate for businesses already receiving recycling 
collections.  
Key service contacts are liaising with the waste operative to determine 
the best options for meeting the regulations; the likely costs of 
additional recycling services required by the regulations and what 
savings can be made from a reduction in residual bin collections. 
A report on anticipated costs in implementing the expanded recycling 
service will be presented to committee when this is determined. 

 
4. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 

 
The policy notes the key drivers for waste management including the 
requirements and the timeline for compliance with the Waste (Scotland) 
Regulations 2012. Existing legislative requirements for waste fully set 
out in Section 9 of the IWMP, are listed below: 
• Environmental Protection (Duty of Care) Regulations 1991 
• End of Life Vehicles Regulations 2003 
• Controlled Waste Regulations 1992 
• Waste Electrical and Electronic Equipment (WEEE) Regulations 

2006 

Page 6



 

• Climate Change (Scotland) Act 2009 
• Animal By- Products (Enforcement) (Scotland) Regulations 2011 
• Waste Information (Scotland) Regulations 2010 
• Producer Responsibility Obligations (Packaging Waste) Regulations 

2007 
• Waste Batteries (Scotland) Regulations 2009 
• Waste Management Licensing (Scotland) Regulations 2011 
 
Under the Duty of Care1 requirements, the Council is required to take 
all reasonable measures to ensure that waste produced from our 
operations is stored, transported, treated, reprocessed and disposed of 
safely without harming the environment. Waste should only be 
transferred to a person or business authorised to deal with that 
particular type of waste. 
Services have identified internal waste as an area where they would 
like to build on existing good practice, improve performance and 
generate savings. Lack of time and resources to dedicate to 
operational waste management, as well as issues with space and 
storage for segregating waste were cited as barriers to change. 
1 – Duty of Care is a code of practice set out in Section 34 of the Environmental 
Protection Act 1990 (as amended) which applies to everyone who produces, keeps, 
imports or manages waste.  

 
5.0 BACKGROUND 

The IWMP aims to move to more sustainable ways of managing 
council waste, reducing the volume of corporate waste going to landfill, 
to: 
• see a reduction in resultant emissions, including methane and CO2, 

from the treatment and disposal of waste; and  
• minimise the risk of environmental pollution and harm to human 

health from waste management.  
The IWMP sets out to make best use of council resources, ensure 
efficiency of waste management operations; and outlines legislative 
obligations in regards to waste management. 

 
5.1 Benefits of waste minimisation 

The Council has a responsibility to manage its waste and make 
effective use of resources from council buildings, operations and 
services. A reported 3.5% of municipal solid waste managed by 
Scottish Local Authorities is generated by the councils themselves, 
through their own activities, from schools, buildings, services and 
offices. (source: Remade Scotland).  
There are strong economic, environmental and social benefits to waste 
minimisation: 

Page 7



 

Economic - Reduced costs for: products and services; transportation 
costs for delivery; product/ material storage costs; waste handling and 
storage costs; and waste disposal costs. 
Environmental – Reduced: depletion of raw materials and natural 
resources; environmental impact from waste, especially hazardous 
waste; pollution and carbon emissions from manufacturing processes 
and transportation of products and materials. 
Social – Improved understanding of: waste as a resource; and safe 
practices and procedures for waste minimisation and waste 
management. 

5.2 Current Situation 
5.2.1 A list of the wide range of internal waste streams currently managed by 

the council is set out in the IWMP, in Appendix 1.  
5.2.2 Waste management systems for Council buildings, operations and 

services have evolved at different rates. This is a result of operational 
limitations; current waste management infrastructure; operational 
capacity; funding issues; and lack of resources. As a result many 
buildings now receive different levels of provision.  

5.2.3 Responsibility for operational waste management in smaller offices and 
other corporate buildings such as libraries, residential premises and 
schools (excluding catering) is with services. Waste from main 
corporate offices and school catering is managed by Facilities 
Management.  
In the majority of these corporate premises council waste and dry 
recyclables are collected by the Council’s own Waste Management 
Service with collections based on container size, number and 
frequency of pick up and paid for accordingly. Without monitoring there 
is no way of knowing the level of use and whether this arrangement is 
most appropriate for waste needs – this is especially true in older 
buildings where the waste arrangements have been long standing. 
Additional collections for waste streams such as confidential waste, 
clinical waste and waste electronic and electrical items are provided by 
external contractors under existing contracts. 
In corporate office buildings, Marischal College and Balgownie One, 
where recycling facilities are in operation for paper and card, glass, 
plastic and cans, a “recycling island system” is in operation. This 
involves locating banks of recycling bins for segregating waste at 
suitable locations in buildings and the removal of desk waste bins to 
encourage recyclates to be placed in appropriate containers and not in 
the general waste stream. 
Good practice is demonstrated with the reuse and redistribution of 
corporate furniture in council buildings. Through the “Disposal of 
Furniture, Fittings and Equipment Protocol”, £13,914 was made from 
the sale of surplus furniture in 2011, following the closure of St 
Nicholas House. 

Page 8



 

5.2.4 Operational waste streams from roads, fleet, street cleansing, street 
lighting and building construction are managed by the relevant service 
areas. These areas may have responsibility for waste streams, 
governed by legislation, such as the End of Life Vehicle Regulations 
and the Special Waste Amendment (Scotland) Regulations 2004 that 
require specific segregation and treatment. Across operational areas, 
where space and activity permit, waste is segregated for separate 
collection. Otherwise waste in skips in mixed, with any potential 
segregation carried out by the waste operative under contractual 
arrangement, under these arrangements paper, plastics, wood, 
cardboard, rubble, soils and metals are removed from the general 
waste streams.  

5.2.5 There is no overarching post for operational internal waste 
management and an option for the future could be to examine the 
benefits and costs associated with a dedicated resource to oversee 
and manage internal waste operations. 

5.2.6 Examples of Council sustainable waste management practice in 
2011/12 including waste reduction, reuse and recycling, are indicated 
in Table1 below: 
Table 1 
Reduce • A reed bed system provides an effective solution to 

reduce the volume of waste from cleaning roadside 
gullies. The reed bed treats waste from gully tankers 
filtering out water from this waste to reduce volume 
and weight. The water can then be reused and the 
resultant, much reduced, residue waste solids are 
then sent for disposal.  

• The Sustainable Building Standards for Council 
Buildings ensure contractors on new council 
buildings produce site waste management plans. 

Reuse • 4,301 tonnes of road planings, from excavations 
during city council road resurfacing operations, were 
segregated for reuse. 

• Granite kerbstones from road operations were 
reused and granite setts were put into storage, for 
reuse where possible. 

• Sustainable planting was demonstrated through the 
reuse of plants, replanting between sites rather than 
sending to landfill. 

• Making best use of resources, surplus furniture, 
fittings and equipment were redistributed and reused 
internally, within council properties and operations, to 
reduce the unnecessary purchase of new furniture. 
During the relocation of Council premises from St 
Nicholas House to Marischal College in 2011, a 

Page 9



 

“Disposal of Furniture, Fittings and Equipment 
Protocol” was produced to ensure items were 
disposed of in the most cost effective and 
sustainable way. This looked to reuse items 
internally; then make sales of any surplus items; 
before the remainder was offered to charities. 

Recycling • 500 tonnes of vegetation and plant matter from 
council operations was recycled. Shrub prunings, 
hedge trimmings and other green waste gathered 
from parks, open spaces and amenity areas during 
maintenance was shredded and made into mulch, to 
improve the soil’s moisture retention and reduce 
weed growth. 

• 275 damaged traffic bollards were recycled. 
• 500 tonnes of waste wood from council woodland 
management and street trees in Aberdeen was 
reused for firewood timber and furniture with residual 
wood waste chipped for paths and similar.  

• Library book and media sales take place annually 
allowing income generation from the recycling of 
older stock. 

5.2.6 Under the Waste Electronic and Electrical (WEEE) Regulations 2006, 
care needs to be taken when disposing of waste electronic and 
electrical equipment. This waste should be separately collected and 
recycled. In 2011/12 sustainable waste management included: 
Reuse • Corporate Governance ensure the reuse of surplus 

ICT equipment, where possible, and the removal of 
parts such as memory chips in older equipment.  

Recycling • The remainder of surplus ICT equipment was sold 
for secure recycling, with 30.43 tonnes of waste PC/ 
media equipment recycled in this period. 

• 11,500 lamps and 650 lanterns from end of life street 
lighting were segregated and sent for recycling to 
ensure compliance with the WEEE Regulations.  

 
5.3 Meeting the Waste (Scotland) Regulations 2012 
 
5.3.1   The Waste (Scotland) Regulations 2012 set a requirement for recycling 

of key materials.  The Council IWMP proposes that waste is prevented, 
reduced or reused ahead of recycling, as a more sustainable approach 
to managing and reducing waste. Where this is not possible waste 
should be recycled and under the regulations an expansion of current 
recycling provision will be required. 

Page 10



 

To meet the requirements of the Waste (Scotland) Regulations 2012 
the Council will need to extend the segregation of key waste streams 
(paper and card, glass, plastics, metal) for recycling across all council 
buildings and service operations, by 1 January 2014.  
Food waste is not currently collected from council premises. Under the 
regulations schools producing over 50kg of food waste a week from 
catering will require a food waste collection service by 1 January 2014. 
Based on average figures for food waste in Scottish schools, 92% of 
city schools are producing food waste of 50 kg a week or more. Food 
waste collections will also need to be in place, by this date, at office 
premises with canteen facilities, such as the Town House and 
Kittybrewster. Smaller food producing premises (5kg – 50 kg) will have 
until 1 January 2016 to meet these regulations.   
Food waste disposal units (macerators) are in place in a number of city 
schools and Social Care and Wellbeing premises and under the 
regulations there will be a ban on use of this equipment from 1 January 
2016. A programme of removal of operational macerators is being 
developed for schools. 

 
5.3.2 Offices 

Main office buildings including Marischal College and Balgownie One 
have recycling in place for paper and card, plastic bottles, cans and 
glass as well as their general waste collections. However, these 
facilities are not currently in place for the remainder of council offices, 
where there may be collections for paper and card only and or no 
recycling at present. Around 53% of council waste from offices is 
currently sent to landfill. 
Paper and card is considered to be the largest waste stream for council 
offices, Remade Scotland put this figure at 75% of waste arising from 
Scottish council offices. Currently around 41% of council waste paper 
and card from Aberdeen City Council offices is currently recycled 
through paper, card and confidential waste collections.  
Figure 1: Break down of corporate waste from offices 11/12 

53%

9%

1%
1%
0%
1%

32%

3%

General
Paper & card
Plastic
Cans
Glass
Clinical waste
Confidential waste
WEEE

 

Page 11



 

 
 
5.3.3 Schools 

Waste from schools forms the highest percentage of the council 
internal waste from premises. In 2011/12, around 4879 tonnes of 
school waste was sent to landfill at a cost of over £323,000, this is 
around 90% of school waste.  
Paper and card is the main waste stream in city schools with food 
waste the second main waste stream. Paper recycling exists in most 
city schools with around 399 tonnes of paper and card currently 
recycled, this is around 8% of total waste arising.  
Food waste recycling is not currently in place in schools, although a 
pilot with several city schools in 2011 showed this could be 
successfully introduced with no operational issues encountered. 
There is limited recycling of other school waste streams, with 
collections for cans and plastic bottles (around 57 tonnes and 9 tonnes 
respectively) taking place in only a few city schools and no glass 
collections in place. 
In schools, there are strong educational benefits to waste minimisation. 
93% of local authority schools in Aberdeen are registered for the 
Eco‐schools programme. This European wide initiative for schools is 
designed to include environmental issues in the curriculum and 
includes an effective mechanism to reduce and recycle school waste 
arisings and make pupils aware of the benefits of this approach.  

5.3.4 Other 
Waste from other council buildings including; libraries, community 
centres, cultural buildings and Social Care and Wellbeing premises, is 
mostly send to landfill, with annual tonnage from these premises 
indicated in the chart below. Limited recycling, mostly paper and card, 
is available in some of these premises in others there is no recycling 
facilities at present. In the region of 147 tonnes of waste was recycled 
from these premises in 2011/12, around 11% of waste arising. 
Figure 2: Break down of corporate waste to landfill from premises 

11/12 

Page 12



 

555.54

4879.3

469.1

421.8
74.23

272.87

Offices
Schools
Social Work
Community centres
Libraries
Other

 
5.3.5 Service Operations 

Under the regulations key dry recyclates should not be mixed with 
other waste that cannot be recycled. Packaging is a major source of 
cardboard waste in service operations and plastic bottles from 
consumables in fleet operations, these items are currently placed with 
mixed waste in skips under present systems. 

 
5.3.6 Implementing additional recycling facilities 

The introduction of new recycling provision would need to:  
• ensure the service meets the requirements for each building  
• offer value for money 
• make best use of resources; and 
• effectively demonstrate a reduction in waste to landfill  
Relevant Service Managers and staff from the Collection Service 
Section have met to discuss the corporate implications of the Waste 
(Scotland) Regulations 2012 and the best way to meet them.  It is 
recommended that Directorates nominate a Service Manager to act as 
point of contact and support the roll out of extended recycling collections 
across relevant service areas to meet this legislation.  
An indicative timeline to meeting the requirements of the regulations is 
set out below: 

 
No Item Action Responsibility Date 
1 Examine options 

for expanding 
recycling and a 
reduction in 
residual waste. 

• A Service Manager 
from each Directorate 
nominated as point of 
contact. 

Directorates  
 
 
 

Feb/ 
March 
2013 
 

• Collection Services 
Section to present 
extended trade waste 
delivery options and 
costs. 

Collection 
Services 
Section 

May 
2013 

Page 13



 

2 Assessment of 
current provision 
for key waste 
streams (as 
defined by the 
regulations) in 
each service 
area. 

• Check information on 
premises and existing 
collections. 

Services March/ 
April 
2013 

• Determine any existing 
budget allocations for 
waste at each site. 

• Determine the quantity 
and type of waste to 
be recycled and the 
remainder requiring 
disposal. 

• Ensure programme for 
compliance with the 
ban on macerators is 
in place. 

 
3 Determine site 

requirements for 
meeting the 
regulations 

To consider: 
• Requirements for 
recycling bin size, 
numbers and 
frequency of 
collections and 
corresponding 
requirements for a 
reduction in residual 
collections (bin size, 
numbers and/or 
frequency). 

 
Services/ 
Collection 
Services 
Section 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
April/ 
May 
2013 
 
 
 
 
 

• Locations for 
containers internally & 
externally.  

June 
2013 
 

• Available vehicle 
access at sites. 

June 
2013 

• Liaise with Collection 
Services Section on 
suitable new collection 
arrangements. 

April - 
June 
2013 

4 Assess costs for 
implementing 
additional 
recycling and 
savings from a 
reduction in 
residual waste 

• Identify cost of or hire 
of internal and external 
bins, depending on 
contractual 
arrangements. 

Services 
 
 
 
 
 

April 
2013 
 
 
 
 • Identify any additional 

costs, such as 
installation of external 
bins. 

• Identify savings from 
the reduction of 
residual waste 
collections. 

Page 14



 

• Procure any required 
internal/ external bins 

Services July - 
Nov 
2013 

5 Staff awareness 
of the aware of 
the changes and 
timeframe for 
implementation. 

• Ensure those with 
responsibility for waste 
and for handling waste 
at each site are aware 
of the changes and 
timeframe for 
implementation. 

Services/ 
Corporate 
Comms 
 
 
 
 

Ongoing 
from 
April 
2013 
 
 
 

• Ensure staff all staff 
are aware of the 
requirements of the 
Waste Minimisation 
Policy and their 
obligations to 
segregate their waste 
in the correct 
containers. 

Services/ 
Environmental 
Policy/ 
Corporate 
Comms 
 

Ongoing 
from 
April 
2013 
 

• Ensure those with 
responsibility for waste 
and for handling waste 
at each site are aware 
of any new collection 
days and 
requirements. 

 

Services Nov/ 
Dec 
2013 
 

• Launch and promote 
the new recycling 
collections. 

Services/ 
Environmental 
Policy/ 
Corporate 
Comms 

Dec 
2013 
Feb 
2014 

6 Monitoring and 
review 

• Monitoring of the new 
collection service to 
ensure bin size 
requirements, 
numbers and 
frequency of 
collections are 
appropriate to needs 
and adjustments made 
as required. 

Services/ 
Collection 
Services 
Section 

Jan - 
March 
2014 

 
6. IMPACT 
 

The Internal Waste Minimisation Policy supports the strategic priority of 
the 5 year Business Plan to “manage our waste better and increase 
recycling” 

 

Page 15



 

Aberdeen – the Smarter City, the administration’s partnership 
statement includes priorities:  
• We will manage waste effectively and in line with UK and European 

legislative requirements by maximising recycling and reducing 
waste to landfill, thereby reducing our costs and carbon footprint. 

• We will design and construct all new infrastructure to be energy 
efficient by maximising the use of low carbon technology and 
materials. We will use recycled materials where appropriate. 

 
The policy has undergone Strategic Environmental Assessment (SEA) 
prescreening and an Equality and Human Rights Impact Assessment 
(EHRIA) has been carried out. 
 

 
7. BACKGROUND PAPERS 

 
Aberdeen City Council Waste Strategy 2010 – 2025 
Sustainable Printing Policy (2006) 
Sustainable Building Standards for Council Buildings (2008) 
Carbon Management Plan 2010 – 2015 
Environmental Management Policy Statement 2009 
Corporate Procurement Strategy 2012 - 2015 

 
 
8. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS  

 
Alison Leslie 
Sustainable Development Officer 
alleslie@aberdeencity.gov.uk  
01224 522792 

Page 16



Internal Waste Minimisation Policy - March 2013 �PAGE  �1�

Appendix 1 
 

 
 
 
 

Internal Waste Minimisation Policy 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 17



Internal Waste Minimisation Policy - March 2013 �PAGE  �2�

 
Date:   March 2013 
Version number: 1 
Contents 
1.  Introduction          
2. Zero Waste Scotland 
 - Waste (Scotland) Regulations 2012 
 - Special waste 
3. Policy aims and objectives 
4. Waste Minimisation 
 4.1 Waste prevention 
 4.2 Waste reduction 
 4.3 Reuse 
 4.4 Recycling & composting 
 4.5 Responsible disposal 
 4.6 Waste storage & segregation 
 4.7  Education & awareness 
5. Roles and responsibilities 
6. Implementation 
7. Reporting on waste minimisation progress 
8. Drivers for Change in Internal waste management 
 
Appendix 1: Waste streams from council premises 
Appendix 2: Baseline of treatment and tonnage 2011/2012 by waste stream  

Page 18



Internal Waste Minimisation Policy - March 2013 �PAGE  �3�

1.0 Introduction  
 
Aberdeen City Council stated its overall commitment to sustainable development 
and good environmental practice in the Environmental Management Policy 
Statement (2009). This document expands on that Policy Statement as it relates 
to waste minimisation and recycling and aims to encourage a sustainable 
approach to managing council waste and resources. 
The council has responsibility for dealing with a wide range of waste streams 
arising from buildings, operations and services; including office waste, 
construction, catering and green waste. This policy aims to establish a 
sustainable approach to waste management, working to the principles of the 
waste hierarchy, to secure a reduction in waste to landfill from council premises 
and service operations and give clear information on legislative requirements.  
The waste hierarchy (Figure 1) sets out preferred methods of sustainable waste 
management from prevention, the best environmental option, through to disposal, 
which is least beneficial to the environment. In line with the waste hierarchy, staff 
should aim to prevent waste from arising from operations through efficient use of 
resources and responsible purchasing. Consideration should then be given to 
reducing the amount of waste generated and reusing waste where possible. 
When these are not possible options for recycling should be explored ahead of 
responsible disposal of residual waste. 
Figure 1: Waste Hierarchy 

 
The true cost of waste includes the value of the materials and products that are 
being thrown away, as well as time on site sorting, handling and managing waste. 
The annual disposal costs for internal waste is around £1,296,627 and this does 
not include the cost of unnecessary purchase of goods and materials 
Rising landfill costs increasingly mean that waste disposal is not a cost effective 
way to manage waste.  Landfill tax on the disposal of waste is currently £64 per 
tonne (2012/13) and will increase to £80 a tonne by April 2014. 

Page 19



Internal Waste Minimisation Policy - March 2013 �PAGE  �4�

Energy, resource use, emissions and pollutants are some of the environmental 
impacts to be considered in product procurement and use and also in the storage, 
disposal and transport of waste. 
Waste is produced from all parts of the organisation and waste minimisation is 
about ensuring all service areas are resource efficient, preventing and minimising 
the production of waste to:  

• reduce greenhouse gas emissions 
• prevent pollution and  
• reduce costs associated with the disposal of waste 

This policy applies to all Aberdeen City Council employees (including agency 
workers, contractors, and volunteers using council premises).  
 
2.0 Waste Scotland 
Scotland’s Zero Waste Plan aims to reduce the impact of waste on Scotland's 
environment by minimising the unnecessary use of primary materials, reusing 
resources where possible, and recycling and recovering value from materials 
when they reach the end of their life.  
The plan sets out a vision of a zero waste Scotland with a target of 70% recycling 
and a maximum of 5% to landfill by 2025 for all of Scotland’s waste. 
The plan plays an important role in helping to achieve the targets set in the 
Climate Change (Scotland) Act 2009 of reducing Scotland's greenhouse gas 
emissions by 42% by 2020 and 80% by 2050.  
Waste (Scotland) Regulations 2012 
The Waste (Scotland) Regulations 2012 are a key tool in delivering Scotland’s 
Zero Waste Policy. They impose a range of obligations in relation to the 
collection, transport, treatment and disposal of key recyclable materials and have 
specific implications for business waste, which cover the Council’s own internal 
waste operations. They require the Council to include: 
Separate dry recyclables (paper, card, plastic, metal and 
glass) for recycling. 

By 1 January 2014 

Separate food waste for collection from council premises 
producing, manufacturing, processing or retailing more 
than 50kg of food waste a week. 

By 1 January 2014 

Separate food waste for collection from council premises 
producing between 5kg and 50kg of food waste per week. 

By 1 January 2016 

Comply with a ban on macerators to come into force. By 1 January 2016 

Page 20



Internal Waste Minimisation Policy - March 2013 �PAGE  �5�

The regulations also amend section 34 of the Environmental Protection Act 1990 
which lays out a number of duties with regards to waste management. To ensure 
compliance with the Duty of Care1 the Council should store waste safely and 
securely; and ensure appropriate documentation is place for the transfer of 
waste. 
Under the Duty of Care the Council has obligation to ensure that its waste, 
irrespective of source, is dealt with responsibly and the amendments implement 
a number of actions from the Zero Waste Plan to ensure that all reasonable 
steps are taken to apply the waste hierarchy as a priority order to the 
management of waste this includes a duty to “take reasonable steps to increase 
the quantity and quality of recyclable material”.   
 
Special waste 
There are additional requirements for managing special waste. This is waste that 
contains substances that might make it harmful to human health or the 
environment, as classified by the European Hazardous Waste Directive. Special 
waste as (indicated in Appendix A) should be managed in accordance with the 
Special Waste Amendment (Scotland) Regulations 2004 set out in section 9 of 
this policy. 
3.0 Policy Aims and Objectives 
The Waste Minimisation Policy will aim to:  
 
Reduce waste to landfill from corporate buildings by 28% by 2018 (against a 
2011/12 baseline). 
Reuse, recycle and compost 65% of corporate waste by 2018 (against a 2011/12 
baseline). 

Objectives 
• Move to sustainable ways of managing council waste and resources to 
reduce the volume of waste send to landfill and to ensure a reduction in the 
resultant emissions from the treatment and disposal of waste. 

• Manage the council’s internal waste arisings in a sustainable manner which 
supports the waste hierarchy of prevention, reduction, re-use, recycling, 
recovery, and disposal. 

• Increase the segregation and collection, for reuse and recycling, of key waste 
streams from council premises and service operations, in line with the 
Scotland Zero Waste Plan.2 

 
 

1 – Duty of Care is a code of practice set out in Section 34 of the Environmental 
Protection Act 1990 (as amended) which applies to everyone who produces, keeps, 
imports or manages waste.  
2 – The Zero Waste Plan was published by Scottish Government in 2010. It sets out the 
vision for a zero waste society in Scotland.  

Page 21



Internal Waste Minimisation Policy - March 2013 �PAGE  �6�

• Ensure that waste produced from Council operations is stored, transported, 
treated, reprocessed and disposed of safely without harming the environment, 
in accordance with the Duty of Care. 

• Ensure that waste produced is managed in compliance with legal and 
statutory obligations. 

• Make best use of resources and ensure efficiency of waste management 
operations – reducing council impact on pollution to land, air and water. 

• Establish clear information on managing waste from council premises and 
service operations, to ensure consistency in waste operations. 

• Give improved understanding of the type and volume of corporate waste 
produced and how this is managed. 

• Raise awareness and understanding of waste minimisation to all staff. 
• Work with new and existing partners to ensure that waste arising from 
external Council related activities and functions is minimised. 

4.0 Waste Minimisation 
It is the responsibility of all Aberdeen City Council employees using council 
premises to manage waste generated by Council operations, services and 
premises in a sustainable manner, that is fully compliant with waste legislative 
requirements and does not harm human health or the environment.  
Under the Duty of Care the Council has an obligation to take all reasonable steps 
to apply the waste hierarchy as a priority order to the management of waste and 
promote high quality recycling. 
Waste is produced from all parts of the organisation and waste minimisation is 
about optimising all areas to be more resource efficient and prevent or minimise 
the production of waste arising and sent to landfill, to reduce greenhouse gas 
emissions and prevent pollution. 
4.1 Waste Prevention 
When waste is prevented there are no disposal and collection costs to address 
and no environmental issues to consider from waste treatment or reprocessing. 
Waste prevention should be considered as a first option and the Council should 
take measures to: 
4.1.1 Prevent the production of waste, through: 

- efficient use of existing resources, equipment and materials  
- responsible procurement, buying goods and materials only when 

needed, in minimum quantities required.   
4.2 Waste Reduction 
Reducing waste cuts the costs associated with the uplift of waste from premises, 
as well as more indirect waste costs including: storage and handling costs; 

Page 22



Internal Waste Minimisation Policy - March 2013 �PAGE  �7�

labour in internal waste management; and the cost of wasted materials and 
consumables in bins and skips.  
Waste reduction also helps conserve natural resources, protecting raw materials 
and reducing the use of energy and water in product production. Where waste 
cannot be prevented measures should be taken to reduce waste: 
4.2.1 Consider the end of life disposal of items prior to purchase:  

-  examine how items would be reused, recycled or disposed of at the 
end of the product life. 

4.2.2. Reduce the consumption of paper products, promote economy in the use 
of paper and the selection of print formats and document styles in line with 
the Council’s Sustainable Printing Policy.3  
- where possible, give preference to the use of digital copies of 
documents over printed versions, for staff who have access to PCs. 

4.2.3 Where practical, reduce the procurement of single use, disposable 
products, supplies and components ie disposable cutlery; and individual, 
serving-sized containers for use during normal operations. 

4.2.4 Consider measures to reduce the amount of construction, demolition and 
excavation waste being produced and taken to landfill. 

4.2.5 Ensure the Council will work with new and existing partners to ensure 
waste arising from Council services and operations is kept to a minimum. 

3 - Sustainable Printing Policy  

4.3 Reuse 
The reuse of items that have not reached their end of life saves resources, saves 
money and reduces the amount of waste going to landfill. Items can be reused 
through processes for checking, cleaning, repair or redistribution, this removes 
the need to purchase unnecessary goods. Reuse should be considered before 
recycling and disposal, with measures taken to: 
4.3.1 Segregate and redistribute surplus and unwanted functional equipment, 

furniture and materials internally within and across Council estate, in line 
with health & safety requirements. 

4.3.2 Identify outlets for the reuse of surplus and unwanted equipment, furniture 
and materials, where reuse options cannot be identified internally. 

4.3.3 Consider the repair of items in preference to replacement, where this is 
cost-effective. 

4.3.4 Where practical, retain working peripheral components from end of life 
products, for reuse as spares or replacements. 

 

Page 23



Internal Waste Minimisation Policy - March 2013 �PAGE  �8�

4.4 Recycling & composting 
Recycling has a financial and environmental impact and recycling waste should 
be considered after waste reduction and reuse options have been explored. 
Examine opportunities to increase the segregation of key waste streams from 
council premises and service operations and expand recycling provision to 
reduce the volume of waste going to landfill. Measures should be taken to ensure 
compliance with the Waste (Scotland) Regulations 2012 by: 
4.4.1 Segregating and presenting for separate recycling collection all paper, 

card, plastics, metals and glass waste from council premises by 1 January 
2014, to ensure compliance with the Waste (Scotland) Regulations 2012. 

4.4.2 Segregating and presenting for separate collection, food waste from 
council premises producing, manufacturing, processing or retailing:  
- more than 50kg a week by 1 January 2014 
-  5kg – 50kg a week by 1 January 2016  

4.4.3 Reducing bin sizes, number collected and/ or frequency of collection of 
residual waste collections when recycling collections are introduced. 

In addition to this the council will: 
4.4.4 Examine opportunities to increase the segregation and collection for 

recycling of further internal waste streams from council premises and 
operations. 

4.4.5 Ensure that the quantity and quality of waste in any co-mingled 
collections4 is not significantly less than it would be from fully segregated 
collections.  

4.4.6 Where possible, examine opportunities to close the loop5 in recycling and:  
- purchase products and materials suitable for recycling and 
composting 

- purchase products made from recycled materials  
4.4.7 Make staff aware of their responsibilities to segregate identified recyclable 

materials and place them in appropriate recycling containers, where 
provided. This is to ensure the quality of materials collected and avoid 
contamination. 

4.4.8 In offices where recycling collections are in place, desk bins should be 
removed. 

 
 
 

4 – Co-mingled collections are where some or all of the key recyclables are 
collected together in the same container and later sorted at a materials recycling 
facility. 
5 – Closed loop recycling is where a product is used, discarded, captured and then 
the component materials recycled into a new product of similar function which can 
go through the same process again. 

Page 24



Internal Waste Minimisation Policy - March 2013 �PAGE  �9�

4.4.9 Ensure that waste is managed in a manner that promotes high quality 
recyclates, in compliance with the Duty of Care.  

4.4.10 Ensure only items suitable for collection should be placed in the relevant 
recycling container, to ensure recyclates are not mixed with other waste 
that cannot be recycled. Guidance will be provided on recycling, suitable 
waste streams and preferred methods of presenting waste. 

4.5 Responsible Disposal 
Disposing of items and materials should be in a responsible manner, in line with 
the waste classifications (outlined in Appendix A), when all options to reduce, 
reuse and recycle have been explored.  
Measures should be taken to: 
4.5.1 Ensure that the segregation, storage, handling, transport and disposal is 

fully compliant with legislative requirements (section 9.0) and does not 
cause pollution or harm to human health. 

4.5.2 Ensure that waste is only transferred to someone who is authorised to 
receive it, such as a registered waste carrier.  

4.5.3 Ensure there is no further introduction of food waste disposal units and 
macerators and that existing food waste disposal units and macerators in 
council premises are not used from 1 January 2016, in accordance with 
Waste (Scotland) Regulations 2012. 

4.5.4 Ensure end-of-life electrical and electronic equipment is segregated and 
recycled to meet the requirements of the Waste Electronic and Electrical 
Equipment (WEEE) Regulations 2006. This is to minimise the risks and 
impacts to the environment associated with the treatment and disposal of 
this equipment.  

4.5.5 Ensure only licensed contractors transport waste from Aberdeen City 
Council premises. 

Minimising special waste helps to protect the environment, as well as avoid the 
increasing costs of special waste treatment. 
4.5.6  Special waste (as defined in 9.10) should be minimised and any special 

waste arising should be disposed of in accordance with the Special Waste 
Amendment (Scotland) Regulations 2004 and be:  
-  correctly stored and properly segregated from other waste types  
- uplifted by a contractor authorised to transport special waste 

Principle 7 of the Data Protection Act 1998 imposes specific requirements about 
the timely and secure disposal of information, both paper and electronic. The 
disposal of confidential waste must protect confidentiality up to and including final 
disposal and destruction. 

Page 25



Internal Waste Minimisation Policy - March 2013 �PAGE  �10�

4.5.7 Segregated confidential waste should be kept in secure containers or 
areas prior to collection. The destruction of confidential waste must be 
complete and any off site disposal of confidential waste should only be 
carried out by an approved contractor. 

4.6 Waste Storage & Segregation 
4.6.1 Waste and recyclables should be: 

i) Segregated in appropriate internal containers, with the exception of 
bulky items which should be stored in a secure area. Internal 
containers should be not be overloaded to allow safe manual 
handling operations. 

ii) Handled, stored and disposed in accordance with relevant 
legislation. 

iii) Properly contained in external containers. 
iv) Special waste (see Appendix 1) must not be mixed with other types 

of special waste or other non- special wastes. 
4.6.2 External containers awaiting collection shall be: 

i) Situated in a safe, designated storage area.  
ii) Accessible for the registered carrier to uplift the waste. 
iii) Kept secure from unauthorised persons. 

4.6.3 Manual handling operations should be kept to minimum and staff required 
to handle waste should: 
i) Abide by the Health and Safety at Work Act 1974 and manual 

handling requirements. 
ii) Exercise care to avoid injury and risk of infection. 
iii) Check that bags and containers are effectively sealed to avoid 

spillage or leakage. 
4.7 Education & Awareness  
Awareness is a key element to underpinning waste minimisation and recycling 
programmes in order to change the perception on waste as unavoidable, to 
waste as a resource. The policy will communicated to all staff to increase 
understanding of their role in waste minimisation.  
The Council will: 
4.7.1 Ensure the Internal Waste Minimisation Policy, information on waste 

minimisation and legislative requirements is made available via the Zone, 
GLOW and the Council website. 

4.7.2 Ensure all staff receive best practice advice and guidance on safe 
practices and procedures for waste minimisation and waste management.  

Page 26



Internal Waste Minimisation Policy - March 2013 �PAGE  �11�

4.7.3 Ensure staff handling waste receive appropriate guidance and / or 
instruction on correct containment and disposal procedures relevant to the 
waste streams being managed.  

4.7.4 Engage all staff in waste reduction measures, with relevant information 
and guidance cascaded through services.  

4.7.5 Promote good practice internal waste management measures already in 
place and establish mechanisms to roll these out across the council. 

4.7.6 Ensure awareness of the Waste (Scotland) Regulations 2012, implications 
for services and the roll out of new recycling collections. 

4.7.7 Communicate progress on waste minimisation and key waste messages 
to all staff on a regular basis, through management structures, internal 
communication channels and the Carbon Champions network. 

 
5 Roles and Responsibilities 
Responsibilities and organisational arrangements for this policy are set out 
below: 
 
5.1 Services are responsible for ensuring: 

• All staff are aware of the Internal Waste Minimisation Policy, made 
familiar with the content and apply it consistently across their 
service area. 

• Waste from their premises and service operations is managed in a 
safe, secure and sustainable manner, in accordance with the waste 
hierarchy and new and existing legislative requirements. 

• The procurement of any goods and services meets the 
requirements of this policy. 

• A manager from each Directorate is nominated as key contact to 
co-ordinate the delivery of dry recyclate and food waste collections 
across their service areas, in accordance with the Waste (Scotland) 
Regulations 2012. 

• The correct, size, number and frequency of collection are assigned 
to any waste collections at premises within their Directorate. 

• A reduction in residual waste collections from their premises, where 
recycling collections are put in place.  

• A list is collated of nominated responsible person(s), those with a 
responsibility for managing waste in any service premises(s) or 
operational area, and records are updated if there are staff changes. 

• Any nominated responsible person(s) understand their duties in 
relation to waste managed and new and existing legislative 
requirements. 

Page 27



Internal Waste Minimisation Policy - March 2013 �PAGE  �12�

• Service waste management practices are reviewed regularly. 
• Relevant data on service waste is collated annually at end of each 

financial year and the data is made available for review, on request. 
• Notifying any relevant waste contractors after building closures to 

ensure that waste collections are stopped at these premises. 
• Staff with a responsiblity for dealing with waste have received 

appropriate instruction and/ or training, relevant to the waste being 
handled. 

• Duty of Care compliance with the segregation, recording and 
storage of special waste. 

• Where appropriate, Waste Transfer Notes and Special Waste 
Consignment Notes are completed and copies kept for records. 

5.3 In accordance with this policy and legislative requirements, Facilities 
Management are responsible for:  

• Managing waste arising in main Council office premises and 
catering waste from schools. 

• Ensuring waste from premises and catering under their 
management, is managed in a safe, secure and sustainable manner, 
in accordance with the waste hierarchy and new and existing 
legislative requirements. 

• Ensuring the correct, size, number and frequency of collection are 
assigned to any waste collections at premises where they have 
responsibility. 

• A reduction in residual waste collections from premises where they 
have responsibility, when recycling collections are put in place. 

5.4 All staff are responsible for complying with this policy and ensuring: 
• Internal processes for reuse, recycling and disposal of items are 

adhered to. 
• The waste hierarchy is applied to any waste arising – preventing, 

reducing, reusing, recycling waste, where possible, before disposal. 
• Waste is segregated in the appropriate containers and boxes 

flattened to make effective use of container space. 
 
6.0 Implementation 
To allow proper consideration to environmental management responsibilities, and 
to assist in the minimisation of waste and the recycling of materials, actions to 
reduce waste will be set out in a Council Internal Waste Minimisation 
Implementation Plan.  

Page 28



Internal Waste Minimisation Policy - March 2013 �PAGE  �13�

This plan will include practical actions aligned to the principles of the waste 
hierarchy to meet the objectives of this policy and to secure a reduction in waste 
from council buildings, services and operations going to landfill.  
A programme of awareness actions and activity will be included in the plan to 
ensure information on waste minimisation, legislative requirements and existing 
good practice is disseminated to all staff. 
 
7.0 Monitoring and Reporting  
Waste needs to be measured and monitored if it is to be effectively managed.  
• Corporate waste data will be measured and recorded to determine the 

volume of internal waste arising and waste diverted from landfill, with waste 
measured against a 2011/12 baseline. 

• Containerisation and frequency of collection should be monitored by 
relevant service areas during the roll out of all new reuse and recycling 
collections to ensure the service is appropriate to requirements. 

• Where new reuse or recycling collections are introduced a reduction in bin 
size, number and/or frequency of collection of residual waste collections 
must be considered. 

• Progress of waste minimisation initiatives will be monitored regularly and 
changes implemented, if required, to ensure targets are met. 

• Environmental Policy will collate information on waste data and details on 
the implementation and progress of waste minimisation actions carried out 
by service areas to report annually to committee. 

This policy will be updated every 5 years or earlier if required by legislative 
changes. 
 
8.0 Drivers for Change in Internal Waste Management 
National 

8.1 Waste (Scotland) Regulations 2012   
Scottish Government has set ambitious targets for waste minimisation and 
is encouraging to government and the public sector to lead by example on 
resource efficiency and waste prevention. The Waste (Scotland) 
Regulations 2012 have set requirements for an increase in the source 
segregation and separation of key recyclable materials from waste 
producers (outlined in 3.0).  

 
8.2 Climate Change (Scotland) Act 2009 

Has set targets to reduce carbon emissions by 42% by 2020 and 80% by 
2050 and includes specific provision for waste. Part 4 of the act places 
duties on public bodies relating to climate change and requires the Council 
to:  

Page 29



Internal Waste Minimisation Policy - March 2013 �PAGE  �14�

− act in the way best calculated to contribute to the delivery of the 
Act’s emission reduction targets. 

 
8.3 Environmental Protection (Duty of Care) Regulations 1991 

Imposes a duty of care on any person who imports, produces, carries, 
keeps, treats or disposes of controlled waste. The duty requires the 
council to ensure: 

• there is no unauthorised or harmful deposit, treatment or disposal of 
the waste  

• the escape of the waste from their control is prevented 
• the transfer of waste is only to an authorised person and that a 
transfer note to be signed.  

 
8.4 Landfill Tax 

Landfill Tax the disposal of waste is £64 per tonne (1st April 2012 – 31 
March 2013). The tax is to encourage waste producers to produce less 
waste, recover more value from waste. 

 
8.5 Waste Information (Scotland) Regulations 2010 

These came into force in January 2011 and require businesses to provide 
waste data returns to the Scottish Environment Protection Agency (SEPA) 
upon request.  

 
8.6 Animal By- Products ( Enforcement) (Scotland) Regulations 2011 

Sets out health rules for dealing with animal by-products not intended for 
human consumption and restricts what may be done with such products. 
These regulations refer to the composting of kitchen and canteen waste. 
  

8.7 Controlled Waste Regulations 
Defines commercial waste for waste management licensing purposes. 

 
8.8 End of Life Vehicles Regulations (2003) 

Requires vehicle producers to set up collection, treatment and disposal 
systems to make sure that components in vehicles can be recovered, 
reused and recycled at the end of their life. 
 

8.9 Producer Responsibility Obligations (Packaging Waste) Regulations 
2007 
Place an obligation on companies who supply packaging (ie 
manufacturers of packaging, sellers of products supplied in packaging, 
importers of goods in packaging etc) to ensure that a specified amount of 
packaging waste is recovered or recycled each year. 

 
8.10 Special Waste Amendment (Scotland) Regulations 2004 

Covers waste deemed hazardous under the European hazardous waste 
Directive.  

Page 30



Internal Waste Minimisation Policy - March 2013 �PAGE  �15�

Special waste includes asbestos, lead acid batteries, electrical equipment 
containing hazardous components ie televisions, oily sludges, solvents, 
fluorescent light tubes, chemical wastes, pesticides. 
This waste must be segregated, collected by an authorised waste carrier 
only and collections must be documented and recorded in consignment 
notes, which are used by SEPA to track the movement of waste in 
Scotland.  

 
8.11 Waste Electrical and Electronic Equipment (WEEE) Regulations 2006  

Waste electronic and electrical equipment can contain can contain 
mercury, lead and cadmium which can cause harm to human health and 
the environment. Under these regulations the council has an obligation to 
dispose of WEEE responsibly.  
The cost and collection of WEEE collection, treatment and recycling for 
products bought after 13 August 2005 should be met by the producer. 
With Historical WEEE, on items purchased before this date, on a like for 
like basis, the new WEEE producer has responsibility. On other items the 
Council would have to pay for treatment, recycling and disposal costs of 
any WEEE from premises or service operations. 

8.12 Waste Batteries (Scotland) Regulations 2009 
Batteries are defined as: 
• Automotive – typically unsealed lead acid 
• Industrial – found in emergency power supplies, alarm systems or 
electric vehicles. 

• Portable batteries – batteries that can be hand held and do not fit into 
either of the 2 categories above 

This legislation bans the landfill or incineration of automotive or industrial 
batteries in Scotland. Producers of automotive and industrial batteries 
must be ready to take back waste batteries from end users. 
The Waste Batteries and Accumulator Regulations 2009 place obligations 
on battery distributors, for portable batteries. 

8.13 Data Protection Act 1998 
Under the Data Protection Act 1998 the Council is responsible for making 
sure that confidential waste is kept secure and protected against loss and 
unauthorised access until final destruction. 

8.14 Waste Management Licensing (Scotland) Regulations 2011 
Considers activities which may be exempt from waste management 
licensing, these are detailed in Regulation 17 and may still be subject to 
statutory controls to prevent environmental pollution and harm to human 
health. Any exemption certification should be registered with SEPA. 

 

Page 31



Internal Waste Minimisation Policy - March 2013 �PAGE  �16�

Council 
 
8.15 Aberdeen City Council Waste Strategy 2010 – 2025 makes specific 

provision for internal waste including - 
• Introduction of recycling service in council offices and schools 
• Maximise the diversion from landfill of organic waste from grounds 

services. 
• Minimise the disposal of waste arising from highways, construction 

and demolition activities of the council. 
 
8.16 Environmental Management Policy Statement 2009, which commits to 

minimise pollution, reduce emissions from our operations; manage waste 
sustainably and reduce energy consumption: 

 
8.17 Carbon Management Plan 2010 – 2015 – which has set targets to 

reduce carbon emissions by 23% by 2015 and 42% by 2020 from council 
buildings, street lighting, waste, fleets and ICT. 

 
8.18 A strategic priority of the Council’s 5 year Business Plan is to “manage 

our waste better and increase recycling.” 
 
8.19 Aberdeen – the Smarter City, the administration’s partnership statement 

includes priorities:  
• We will design and construct all new infrastructure to be energy 
efficient by maximising the use of low carbon technology and 
materials. We will use recycled materials where appropriate. 

• We will manage waste effectively and in line with UK and European 
legislative requirements by maximising recycling and reducing waste 
to landfill, thereby reducing our costs and carbon footprint. 

 
8.20  Sustainable Printing Policy (2006) developed to ensure best printing 

practice in the council, to reduce paper consumption, save energy, 
maximise the use of multifunction document centres, reduce the number 
of printers in office areas and minimise spend on printers, printer 
maintenance and consumables. 

 
8.21 Sustainable Building Standards for Council Buildings (2008) 

Requires contractors in council new build projects to produce a site waste 
management plan. 

 
8.22 Corporate Procurement Strategy 2012 -2015 

The Council’s Corporate Procurement Strategy includes specific 
information on sustainable procurement. Aloongside the strategy a 
responsible Procurement toolkit includes a “waste and recycling” and 

Page 32



Internal Waste Minimisation Policy - March 2013 �PAGE  �17�

“responsible consumption” in a number of sustainability matters to be 
considered in procurement decisions. 

 
 
 

Page 33



Internal Waste Minimisation Policy - March 2013 �PAGE  �18�

Appendix A 
 
Non – hazardous waste 
European Waste 
Classification 

Council waste streams 
20 01 01 
15 01 01 

Paper & Cardboard 
Paper & cardboard packaging 

20 01 02 Glass 
20 01 08 Biodegradeable kitchen & canteen waste 
20 01 10 Clothes 
20 01 11 Textiles 
20 01 25 Cooking oil and fat 
20 01 38 Wood 
16 06 04 Batteries 
20 01 39 Plastics 
20 01 40 Metals 
20 02 01 Green waste 
20 03 07 Furniture  
08 01 12 Waste paint and varnish 
17 01 01 Concrete 
17 01 02 Bricks 
17 01 03 Tiles and ceramics 
17 02 01 Wood (construction) 
17 02 02 Glass (construction) 
17 04 07  Metals (construction) 
17 05 04 Soil (excavation) 
17 06 04 Insulation materials 
17 08 02 Gypsum based construction materials 
18 01 01 Sharps 
18 01 04 Clinical waste 
16 01 03 Tyres 
16 01 06 End of life vehicles 
16 01 12 Brake pads 
16 02 14 WEEE – electronic and electrical equipment 
16 02 16 Components removed from discarded WEEE 
20 03 03 Gully Waste 
20 03 03 Street sweepings 
 
 
Special waste - Any waste defined as hazardous by the European Hazardous 
Waste Directive. This means it has hazardous properties to human health or the 
environment. 
European Waste 
Classification 

Council waste streams 
20 01 13 Solvents 

Page 34



Internal Waste Minimisation Policy - March 2013 �PAGE  �19�

20 01 21 Fluorescent tubes 
20 01 35  
20 01 23 

Discarded electrical and electronic equipment containing 
hazardous components such as cathode ray tubes 

13 07 02 Petrol 
13 07 01 Fuel oil and diesel 
17 06 05 Asbestos 
16 06 01 Lead - acid batteries 

Page 35



 

Internal Waste Minimisation Policy – March 2013   21 
 

Appendix B 
 
Baseline of treatment 2011/2012 by waste stream  
 
No 

Waste 
Stream/Resource 

Tonnes of 
Waste 11/12 Total 

Current 
Treatment/Disposal 

Route 

Total Waste 
Disposal & 

Treatment Cost 
(£) 

11/12 
1 General waste 6,750.8 Disposal 523,987 
2 Paper & Cardboard 593.9 Recycled 7,813 
3 Glass 5.9 Recycled 67 
4 Plastic  65.7 Recycled 537.52 
5 Aluminium cans 17.5 Recycled 627.52 
6 Confidential waste 300 Recycled 33,551 
7 Cooking Oil 6.7 Recycled 0 
8 Food waste 0 Disposal 0 
9 Furniture Unknown Reused 0 
10 Ink Jet Cartridges 0.2 Recycled 0 
11 Xerox cartridges Unknown Recycled through 

MFD contract 
0 

12 WEEE (ICT) 30.4 Recycled 0 
13 Clinical waste Unknown Disposal 17,526 
Fleet 
14 End of life vehicles 234.8 Recycled 0 
15 Oil filters 0.5 Recycled 1,000 
16 Waste oil Unknown Recycled 0 
17 Tyres 32.9 Recycled 0 
18 Lead acid batteries Unknown Recycled 0 
19 Fleet skip collections 35 Mostly Disposal 2,400 
Roads and street lighting 
20 Road Planings 4,310  Reused 0 
21 Lamps 1.44 Recycled 1,150 
22 Lanterns 6.5 Recycled 130 
23 End of life columns 

(concrete) 
Unknown Disposal Costs not 

separate 
24 End of life columns 

(steel & aluminium) 
13.82 Recycled 0 

25 Photo cells 0.22 Disposal Costs not 
separate 

26 Ballast/Choke 1.4 Disposal Costs not 
separate 

27 Traffic bollard  7.4 Recycled 0 
28 Bitmac/concrete/slab

s roads & street 
lighting) 

2,500 Mostly Disposal 178,572 

Page 36



 

Internal Waste Minimisation Policy – March 2013   21 
 

29 Gully waste 234 Reduced then 
Disposal 

16,045 
Environmental Service 
30 Wood ( greenspace) 500  Recycled 0 
31 Green waste 500  Composted 0 
32 Waste from street 

cleansing 
4,906 Disposal 333,360 

Construction waste 
33 Construction Waste  

(building 
improvements) 
-  Metal 
- Wood 
- Glass 
- Plasterboard 
 - Mixed construction 
and demolition 
waste 
- Asbestos 

2,534 Segregated 
recycling of wood 
and metal. 
Potential 

recyclates are 
segregated 
where possible 
from skips under 
contractual 
arrangement   

181,001 

 
Total waste arising – Approximately 23,589 tonnes 
 
Note: 
1. For items listed as unknown there are no current forms of measuring and 

monitoring of this waste stream, although there is awareness of current 
treatment routes. The IWMP aims to improve monitoring and measuring of 
waste to enable future data for all possible waste streams to build a 
comprehensive picture of Aberdeen City Council internal waste. This will 
allow better evidence of areas of good practice. 

2. MFD – Multi-functional device 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Page 37



Page 38

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 
ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 

 
 
COMMITTEE  Zero Waste Management Sub-Committee  
 
DATE     30 April 2013   
 
DIRECTOR    Pete Leonard    
 
TITLE OF REPORT  Update on the Business Case for Energy from 

Waste Procurement 
 
REPORT NUMBER: ZWM/13/*** 
 
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 

 
The purpose of this report is to provide an update on the development of a 
Business Case for Energy from Waste (EfW) procurement. 
 
2. RECOMMENDATION 
 
That the Zero Waste Management Sub-Committee notes the report. 

 
3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  
 
The financial implications of the Zero Waste Project have been previously 
reported through report ZWM/12/005 Outline Business Case for Waste 
Treatment Facilities presented at the Sub Committee Meeting on 3 October 
2012.  The report identified that substantial investment is required to deliver 
these facilities and allocations have been made through the 2013/14 budget 
process, agreed at Council meeting of 14th February 2013.  

 
4. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
Support from Finance and Legal and Democratic Services is required to 
complete undertake the variation process.  Both departments will provide 
support to this project. 
 
5. BACKGROUND AND MAIN ISSUES 

 
On 10 October 2012, Council approved recommendations in the Outline 
Business Case (OBC) report considered at the Sub-committee meeting on 3 
October 2012. 
 
A key element in delivering the recommendations in the report is the 
development of s detailed Business Case for the procurement of an EfW 
facility in Aberdeen. 

Agenda Item 5

Page 39



 

 

 
The OBC provided cost estimates for EfW based on available gate fee 
information.  It was recognised that this information is limited and often highly 
specific to individual sites, therefore a recommendation was made to 
undertake further cost analysis prior to committing to an expensive and 
protracted procurement process. 
 
5.1 Scope of Business Case 
 
The Business Case will review the Council’s outline business case, and 
develop a more detailed, costed option for a local thermal treatment facility. 
This work will go beyond comparison of project costs and gate fees for similar 
installations (which has already been done in the business case) and focus 
instead on an outline, costed, technical design and financial model for a 
typical thermal treatment plant of the size anticipated, to be built on a 
nominated site in Aberdeen.  
 
The objective will be to demonstrate that a local thermal treatment facility will 
meet future legislative targets and provide the best value solution for residual 
waste for the Council over a typical operational life (20 years) compared to 
RDF export or other treatment options.  

 
5.1 Supporting activities / project plan 

 
In order to progress the project, the following supporting activities have been 
identified 

 
• Set up project team & project documentation 
• Procurement of technical advisors  
• Development of a draft communications plan  
• Work to identify potential sites for the EfW plant, and other facilities 
• Produce Business Case 
• Undertake preliminary work, in anticipation of EfW procurement 

starting in full in 2014 
 
Provisional milestone dates in the draft plan at present are as follows: 

 
• Communication plan draft complete   mid April 
• Potential sites identified in principle   early May  
• Advisors appointed     3rd wk. May 
• EfW review complete     end September 
• Advisors prepare reports & recommendations October 
• Sites / site options secured    late October 
• Conclusions available for Project Board  early November 
• ZWMP Sub Committee approval   4th  December 
• Full Council Approval     18th December 
 

5.2 Implementation programme 
 

Page 40



 

 

The procurement, permitting, funding, construction and commissioning of an 
EfW plant, if approved, will take several years.  
 
It is difficult to estimate how long this may take as each project has very 
individual characteristics, but a benchmark examples have been sought and 
used for this project. 
 
This programme has been adapted for a notional procurement start date of 1st 
April 2014, and shows potential financial close in early 2017, with the facility 
coming “on stream” in early 2022.  
 
Not all of the process steps shown in the benchmark may be required, some 
of the steps will be different in Scotland, and the individual activity durations 
may be different (longer, or shorter) so actual delivery date for an Aberdeen 
plant will almost certainly be different and it is anticipated that delivery date 
will be at least 1 year earlier. 
 
This programme will be refined as the Business Case develops and will be 
reported to the Sub-committee. 
 
5.3 Issues / Risks 
 
A full risk register will be developed once the technical advisors are appointed 
and will kept under review throughout the project. 
 
The key risk identified to date is whether that the EfW proposals will deliver 
significant benefits, sufficient to justify proceeding to full procurement. There 
are also potential risks related to affordability, in the context of the general 
funding pressure on Council services which is likely to continue for several 
years. 
 
For this reason it is important to ensure that ACC Finance are appropriately 
represented on the project team during the EfW business case review 
process. This will ensure an effective understanding of the project and it’s 
development, so that later decisions about whether or not to proceed to full 
EfW procurement can be properly informed, from a financial perspective.  
 
It may also be necessary to refer some elements of the project proposals to 
the Council’s financial advisors (e.g. funding mechanisms for the EfW plant, 
split capital investment for SITA site acquisition and plant development) in 
which case input from ACC Finance will be essential.  Funding for the 
construction of EfW is not included in the 5 year non-housing capital plan and 
further work will be required during this process to integrate financial decision 
making into the Council’s capital planning process. 
 
A further delivery risk once a procurement has been commenced will be 
obtaining planning permission.  During the Business case review, work will be 
undertaken to consider the best strategy for obtaining planning permission, 
including consideration of an early application undertaken by the Council.  
Such a move would foreshorten the delivery timeframe by up to 18 months. 

Page 41



 

 

 
6. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS  
 
 Peter Lawrence 

Waste & Recycling Manager 
plawrence@aberdeencity.gov.uk 
01224 489331 
 

 

Page 42



 

 

 
ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 

 
 
COMMITTEE  Zero Waste Management Sub-Committee  
 
DATE     30 April 2013   
 
DIRECTOR    Pete Leonard    
 
TITLE OF REPORT  Update on Waste Management Services 

Contract Variation 
 
REPORT NUMBER: ZWM/13/*** 
 
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 

 
The purpose of this report is to provide an update on Waste Management 
Services Contract variation. 
 
2. RECOMMENDATION 
 
That the Zero Waste Management Sub-Committee notes the report. 

 
3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  
 
The financial implications of the Zero Waste Project have been previously 
reported through report ZWM/12/005 Outline Business Case for Waste 
Treatment Facilities presented at the Sub Committee Meeting on 3 October 
2012.  The report identified that substantial investment is required to deliver 
these facilities and allocations have been made through the 2013/14 budget 
process, agreed at Council meeting of 14th February 2013.  

 
4. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
Support from Finance and Legal and Democratic Services is required to 
complete undertake the variation process.  Both departments will provide 
support to this project. 
 
5. BACKGROUND AND MAIN ISSUES 

 
On 10 October 2012, Council approved recommendations in the Outline 
Business Case report considered at the Sub-committee meeting on 3 October 
2012. 
 
A key element in delivering the recommendations in the report is the 
renegotiation of the Waste Management Services Contract (WMSC) with SITA 

Agenda Item 6

Page 43



 

 

UK Limited.  The contract commenced on 21 September 2000 and has a 
duration of 25 years. 
 
The main element of the contract was the construction of an combined Energy 
from Waste (EfW) and Materials Recycling Facility (MRF) at the Altens 
Environmental Park.  Planning permission for this facility was refused in 2004 
and the contract has operated on an interim basis since. 
 
By defining the infrastructure and service requirements in the Outline 
Business Case, the Council has now set the template for the remaining term 
of the WMSC.  In order to implement all the elements of the OBC apart from 
an combined heat and power EfW plant, the WMSC must be varied. 
 
This variation is, in essence, a complete ‘reboot’ of the contract and as such 
will require a significant amount of work from both the Council and the 
Contractor to develop suitable proposals at best value to the Council. 
 
5.1 Scope of Contract Variation 
 
The key objectives of contract variation are to renegotiate revised contractual 
arrangements with SITA(UK) Ltd for the provision of: 
 

• Food and green waste processing,  
• Development of a new materials recovery facility (MRF) for recyclable 

materials,  
• Development of an interim refuse-derived fuel (RDF) export solution, 

pending development of a residual waste processing facility in 
Aberdeen and 

• Development of a new Bridge of Don Recycling Centre 
 

5.2 Supporting activities / project plan 
 
In order to progress the project, the following supporting activities have 
been identified 
 
• Set up project team & project documentation 
• Procurement of technical advisors  
• Development of a new data model and tonnage projections  
• Work to identify potential sites for the EfW plant, and other facilities 
• Transition plan – to plan implementation of the new collection 

regime and co-ordination with the introduction of new processing 
facilities. This may include the development of interim market 
solutions pending completion of new processing facilities. 

 
At this stage the project plan is in draft and is likely to change following 
discussions with SITA regarding their ability to deliver to the proposed 
programme, and also once advisors have been appointed and the plan 
reviewed in the context of their role. 

 
Provisional milestone dates in the draft plan at present are as follows: 

Page 44



 

 

 
• Data model & projections ready   late April 
• Start-up meeting with SITA    early April  
• Advisors appointed     3rd wk. May 
• SITA negotiations concluded    end September 
• Advisors prepare reports & recommendations October 
• Sites / site options secured    late October 
• Conclusions available for Project Board  early November 
• ZWMP Sub Committee approval   4th  December 
• Full Council Approval     18th December 
 
 

5.3 Implementation programme 
 

A project plan has been developed that makes broad assumptions about how 
long it may take to conclude contract close with SITA following agreement, 
secure sites and planning permission and deliver operational facilities. A 
better estimate will be available as negotiations progress, but for the time 
being it assumed that the new SITA facilities will be fully operational by 3rd 
quarter 2015. 
 
Some elements of the proposals – particularly the RDF export solution (which 
is anticipated to use leased premised, and required only modest investment) 
are likely to be available much earlier – probably mid to late 2014. 

 
 
 
5.4 Issues / Risks 
 
A full risk register will be developed once the technical advisors are appointed 
and negotiations with SITA are under way, and will kept under review 
throughout the project. 

 
The highest risks identified to date are related to the potential difficulties of 
demonstrating that SITA’s proposals offer value for money compared with an 
open-market solution and the risk that SITA’s proposals unaffordable, in the 
context of the general funding pressure on Council services which is likely to 
continue for several years.  Both of these risks are mitigated by the structure 
of the renegotiation, employment of Technical Advisors and the extensive 
work already taken through the Outline Business Case to assess the costs 
and benefits of the options taken. 
 
Furthermore, it is important to ensure that ACC Finance are appropriately 
represented on the project team from the start of the SITA negotiations.  
 
It is intended that the project legal advisors (Brodies LLP) shall conduct any 
detailed negotiations related to contract terms and ensure legal compliance. 
Similarly, ACC Legal Services may wish to be represented at key meetings 
and reviews so as to be able to satisfy themselves that the final SITA 
proposals and contract changes are sound. 

Page 45



 

 

 
6. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS  
 
 Peter Lawrence 

Waste & Recycling Manager 
plawrence@aberdeencity.gov.uk 
01224 489331 
 

 

Page 46



 

 

 
ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 

 
 
COMMITTEE  Zero Waste Management Sub-Committee  
 
DATE     30 April 2013   
 
DIRECTOR    Pete Leonard    
 
TITLE OF REPORT  Draft Communications Plan 
 
REPORT NUMBER: ZWM/13/*** 
 
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 

 
To provide the Board with an update on progress with the communications 
strategy associated with the development of the single site waste 
infrastructure project. 

 
 
2. RECOMMENDATION 
 
That the Board:- 
 
  Note the report and agree to the draft communications strategy. 

 
3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  
 
None from this report 

 
4. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
Non from this report 
 
5. BACKGROUND AND MAIN ISSUES 

 
Council approval of the Outline Business Case for Waste Management 
Services included a requirement for the Council to engage with stakeholders 
on the delivery of waste infrastructure in Aberdeen.  This report outlines the 
proposed activities to implement this requirement. 
 
Aberdeen City Council has agreed to invest in the development of waste 
infrastructure upon a single site within the City boundary. To ensure that 
stakeholders are aware of this development a communications strategy has 
been drafted. This is detailed within Appendix 1 as a separate attachment. 
 

Agenda Item 7

Page 47



 

 

The draft strategy covers communications and awareness activity from point 
of approval until the preferred land is acquired. Another strategy will have to 
be developed thereafter covering marketing and public relations associated 
with  the planning, construction and implementation phases of this potential 
contentious development.  
 
 
6. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS  
 
 Amy Gray 
 Waste Strategy Manager 
 Email: amygray@aberdeencity.gov.uk 
 Tel: 01224 489129 

Page 48



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Appendix 1 
 

 
Communications strategy for ACC Waste Infrastructure 

Project 
 

April 2013 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Revision 
Date 

Version Summary of Changes Distributed (Y/N) 

08/04/12 0.1 Draft produced by Waste Strategy Manager No 
    
    

 

Page 49



 

 

Contents 
 
1. Introduction           3 
2. Background           3 
3. Aim            4 
4. Target Audience          4 
5. Key messages           6 
6. Key challenges           7 
7. Communications Activity         8
    
  Public Relations and Media        8 
  Face to face          8 
  Advertising          8 
  Publications          8 
  Half day event          9 
  Printed materials         9 
  Online           9 
  Social media          9 
  Site visits          9 
8. Timings            10 
9. Monitoring and Evaluation         11 
10. Future considerations          11 
11. Further information          12 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 50



 

 

1. Introduction 
 
Aberdeen City Council will be investing heavily in the development of infrastructure that will enable the City 
to manage its waste more sustainably. Presently, industrial land is being sourced to accommodate such 
facilities. 
 
This communications strategy is designed around the ramifications of this waste infrastructure and deals 
with the key messages of the project and the communications challenges faced.  

 
2. Background 
 
Aberdeen City Council’s current waste management arrangements were established in 2000. Since then, 
a new legislative framework has been introduced and more demanding targets set that will require 
substantial changes to be made in waste collection, processing and disposal. 
In 2009 as part of the Council’s wider 5-year Budget Plan initiative, and arising from the Council’s Waste 
Strategy, the service started a Zero Waste management project to deliver performance improvements to 
address national targets and mitigate future cost pressures. 
Aberdeen has one of the most buoyant economies in the UK, and a catchment that includes a mix of multi-
occupancy properties (over 50%) as well as suburban and semi-rural properties. A new waste collection 
regime has been selected to maximise participation from this housing mix, and to a degree pre-selects the 
waste processing technologies that will be required in future. 
At present all waste is managed under the Waste Management Services Contract by SITA (UK) Ltd and 
includes Kitchen and Garden waste bulked and sent for processing at New Deer, limited Recyclables 
processing carried out within the City at Sclattie and residual waste bulked and hauled to landfill at 
Stoneyhill near Peterhead. The combined collection, recycling and disposal cost in 2010/11 was £17.405 
M 
Population and household numbers have remained stable in recent years, with only small changes in total 
waste arisings (tonnage) year-on-year. This has shown a downward trend, thought to be due to reduced 
packaging measures being introduced by industry and more recently because of reduced economic 
activity as a result of the national downturn.  
Improved collection arrangements (like the introduction of food waste collection in 2010) and the impact of 
local and national education and awareness programmes have influenced customer behaviour such that 
there has been a gradual shift of material away from residual waste to the organic and recyclable streams.  
Recycling performance in 2010/11 was 31.7%. This is some way short of the national target of 40% but 
consistent with the performance of other cities with a high proportion of multiple-occupancy housing, where 
recycling performance is typically poor, and can be difficult to improve. 
 
Strategic drivers 
There are several policy drivers for change: 

• EU Waste Framework Directive 
• Scotland’s Zero Waste Plan 
• Waste (Scotland) Regulations 2012  
• Aberdeen City Waste Strategy 2010-2025 

Together, these point to the need for significant improvement in recycling performance, and reductions in 
the amount of biodegradable material going to landfill.  
The regulations include specific targets and (in some cases) deadlines, bans and exclusions for the 
collection and treatment of particular material types. Environmentally preferred treatments and processes 
are also identified.  
In Scotland, local legislation has changed regularly and may change again in future. Some targets are 
statutory and others are “aspirational” and do not carry the force of law. 

Page 51



 

 

Local targets for Aberdeen have been based on statutory requirements and are set out in the City Waste 
Strategy as follows; 

• Recycling: 45% by 2013 
50% by 2020 
56% by 2025 

• Organic: Collections for all households by 2013 
• Residual: 45% (or less) by 2020 

40% by 2025 
• Landfill: 5% (or less) by 2025 
• Growth: Waste arisings (gross tonnage) stable by 2015 

 
The commitments made in the budget will help bring our goal of being a Zero Landfill city by 2016 a reality.  
Furthermore, by expanding recycling and food waste collections to everyone in the city, Aberdeen City 
Council will be leading the way amongst Scotland's and, possibly the UK's, cities in the depth and extent of 
recycling services we will provide. 
  
The Scottish Government has set all authorities across Scotland the task of 70% recycling and Aberdeen 
City Counci are absolutely committed to doing everything to achieve this by making this as easy as 
possible for the residents of Aberdeen to do their bit to be the best. 
 
3. Aim  
 
To inform stakeholders of the intention to build a single site development to provide waste infrastructure 
providing treatment and disposal opportunities for waste produced within Aberdeen City. 
 
It is important to note that this is not a consultation exercise, but rather an opportunity to disseminate 
information. 

 
4. Target audience 
 
The main audience will be the elected members of Aberdeen City Council, to ensure there is political 
support for this initiative; and to ensure they understand and are engaged with the project.  
 
It is absolutely crucial that we engage with all of the stakeholders involved to ensure the success of the 
project.  The analysis tabled below details the role of these groups, their interest in the project, the level of 
engagement required and also the main communication channel which will be used with each of the 
stakeholder groups.  The level of engagement required will be either:   
 

• Information - Providing information.  It tends to be one-way communication 
• Education - Explaining or raising awareness of something – perhaps to change attitudes/ action. 

Again this tends to be one-way communication. 
• Consultation - Asking for opinions – while making it clear that the ultimate decision remains with 

the person doing the consulting.  This is usually two way communication with a feedback loop. 
• Involvement - Seeking more than opinions – participants may be part of the solution through 

taking action, endorsing something etc.  Again this is usually two way communication with a 
feedback loop. 

• Delegation - Giving away decision making, resources and control.  This is also two way 
communication with clear lines of accountability. Other stakeholders are highlighted in the table 
below. 

 
Internal stakeholders 

 
Stakeholder 

Group 
Role and 

responsibility 
Interest and 
expectation 

Level of 
engagement 

Communication 
channel 

Page 52



 

 

Internal stakeholders 
Corporate 
Management 
Team 

Decision maker Progress of 
project towards 
delivery 

Education Committee meetings / 
briefing notes / papers 
and any other relevant 
channels 
 

Elected 
members 

Committee decision 
maker.  Engaging 
and influencing 
constituents 

Progress Education 

Director Inputting to stages of 
the project as 
required Determining 
resources to take 
forward specific parts 
of the project 
Engaging their 
service with the 
process 

Involvement in 
certain aspects 
of the project.  
Progress and 
any areas of 
impact on 
service 
Involvement in 
certain aspects 
of the project.  
Progress and 
any areas of 
impact on 
service 

Involvement Committee meetings 
Head of 
Service 

SMT meetings 

Project board Decision maker Interested in any 
blockages, areas 
of high risk, 
progress and 
changes to the 
timescale 

Consultation Project board meetings 

Project team Actions and delivery Delivery of 
project in agreed 
timescale and to 
agreed project 
plan 

Delegation Project team meetings  

Impacted staff 
(in-scope) 

Communication to be 
given at the 
appropriate times 
using the correct 
medium and level of 
engagement 

Specific interest 
in waste service 
provision 

Consultation and 
involvement 
(depending on 
the stage of the 
project) 

The channel that best 
suits the message 
being delivered 

Impacted staff 
(out of scope) 

Communication to be 
given at the 
appropriate times 
using the correct 
medium and level of 
engagement 

Specific interest 
in planning, and 
how new 
development will 
impact on areas 
of the City 

Consultation and 
involvement on 
certain aspect of 
the project 

The channel that best 
suits the message 
being delivered 

Page 53



 

 

External stakeholders 
 

Stakeholder 
Group 

Role and 
responsibility 

Interest and 
expectation 

Level of 
engagement 

Communication 
channel 

External stakeholder 
Contractors Provide services as a 

third party 
Specific interest 
in what will 
happen to the 
outstanding 
contracts and 
new 
development 

Involvement Through contract 
meetings and written 
updates. Through 
procurement portals 
and tender 
advertisements 

Potential 
investors 

Provide services or 
investment for the 
development 

Specific interest 
in what will 
happen in 
relation to 
development 
opportunities 

Involvement Through adverts and 
discussions with the 
project team 

Media To communicate to 
the public information 
which they think is 
useful 

Interested in the 
project as high 
profile news and 
also from a 
staffing point of 
view 

Education Press releases to the 
media team 

Public Not defined Specific interest 
in how the 
development of 
new waste 
infrastructure will 
affect them 
 

Education The channel that best 
suits the message 
being delivered 
 

Community 
Councils 

Not defined Education 
Non-
Governmental 
Organisations 

May act for or 
against the 
development of new 
infrastructure 
dependent on the 
aim of the 
organisation 

Education and 
possibly some 
degree of 
consultation 

 
 
 
5. Key messages 
 
The key messages are those which we will refer to regularly in our communications with staff to ensure 
clarification of the reasons, progress, impact and benefits of the project.   
 
The key messages for the project are: 
 

• The new waste infrastructure proposed is necessary in order for Aberdeen City Council to manage 
its waste sustainably and to meet the legal and aspirational targets set by legislation and voluntary 
agreements 

• Construction of a new, local MRF (inc. glass) delivered within Waste Management Services 
Contract 

• Construct a new, local windrow composting plant delivered within Waste Management Services 
Contract 

• Construct a new, local In-Vessel Composting plant delivered within Waste Management Services 
Contract 

• Construct facilities for the interim export of waste, delivered within Waste Management Services 
Contract   

• Resolve site, planning and financing issues and procure a new Energy from Waste (EFW) facility 
in Aberdeen for delivery around 2020 

• Communication will be ongoing throughout the process and each stakeholder group will be 
engaged in this 

Page 54



 

 

• Communication will be open and transparent manner with all stakeholders 
• Stakeholders are welcome to contact the project team at any time to seek clarification on any 

issues 
• For elected members and varying departments across the council, your help is needed in 

supporting this change and ensuring a holistic approach is taken when communicating on this 
topic. Information will be provided to you but your help maybe required in answering questions and 
concerns 

6. Key challenges 
 
There is a significant risk to the project if stakeholders are not communicated with effectively therefore this 
must be given a priority. There are some key challenges that will need to be overcome throughout the 
course of the project.  The project is high profile and could potentially face opposition from some 
stakeholder groups.  The table below identifies potential challenges and possible ways to mitigate these. 
 

Challenges Possible way to mitigate 
Internal challenges 
Communicating to stakeholders who 
are not fully engaged 

Consistent, clear, direct, factual, 
focused and honest communication 

Confusion, uncertainty, rumours 
 

Provide managers with the answers 
to questions so that they can alleviate 
some of the uncertainty 
• Feedback loop 
• FAQ’s 
• Regular Communication 

Sense of ownership, commitment and 
empowering people to take a lead on 
raising awareness of the project 
within their own sphere of work 

Provide as much information to staff 
where possible on the areas that may 
impact upon them. Ensure holistic 
thinking is applied.  
   

External challenges 
Corporate/ public image/ media 
 
 

Ensure external communications 
team are kept fully informed of project 
so as to respond to media effectively - 
this should also help with the 
corporate/public image.  Encourage 
pro-active approach with media and 
using press releases 

Adversity to the project and 
NIMBYism 

Communicating a positive message, 
with a holistic view. Having 
information readily available and 
allowing people the opportunity to 
raise questions and receive answers. 

Uncertainty amongst current 
contractors and other stakeholders 
 

Communication at appropriate times 
within the project milestones.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 55



 

 

 
7. Communications Activity 
 
To address the communication needs of all stakeholders a range of internal and external communication 
methods could be used to ensure that the message is delivered in the right way. Please see detailed 
below an example of what can be provided.  
 
Public Relations and Media 
 
It is imperative that any public relations and media activity focuses on the positive attributes of this 
development and showcases the benefits in a holistic manner; covering the financial, strategic, commercial 
and management cases.  
 
Press releases sent to print; broadcast and online media will help to raise general awareness of the 
development.  
Specialist PR (e.g. case studies, placing features on particular aspects of the project e.g. EfW, MRF) 
would require the support of specialist consultancy advice or a PR agency.  
 
Consideration should be given to a reactive strategy to address any objections raised following the general 
announcement.  
 
Media and social media can also be used if appropriate to give regular updates on how the identification / 
procurement / planning of the development is going.  
 
Face to face  
 
Face to face communications can be in the form of: 
 

• Briefings from Director 
• Briefings from project team 
• 1-2-1 sessions with Head of Service 
• Focus groups 
• Discussion groups 
• Presentations 
• Half day event 
• Drop in sessions  
• Team meetings 
• Briefing meetings 

 
Advertising 
 
Press advertising will be useful for general communications to inform the wider community that such a 
development is proposed. Other forms of external communications could include: 
 

• Interviews/articles 
• Feature/Opinion pieces 
• Holding statements (issued proactively and reactively) 

 
Publications 
 
Articles within the following and any other relevant publications: 
 

• Newsbite  
• Internal directorate newsletters 
• City Voice 
• Green Times 
 

Half day event 
 

Page 56



 

 

A half day event will be scheduled where stakeholders will be invited to attend. At this event there will be a 
series of presentations covering all aspects of the proposed development with guess speakers. It is 
envisaged that the Lord Provost be asked to open the event and Councillor Jean Morrison chair the event. 
 
An initial outline could be as follows: 
 
09.30 – 10.00 Registration 
10.00 – 10.10 Introduction and welcome from the chair, Councillor Jean Morrison 
10.00 – 10.10 Scene setting from the Lord Provost 
10.10 – 10.20 Strategic case for the development – jointly between ZWS and CIWM 
10.20 – 10.45 Case studies – Devon, Sheffield, Nottingham 
10.45 – 11.00 Refreshment break 
11.00 – 11.30 The political arena – Scottish government / SEPA 
11.30 – 12.00 Outlining the development – key aspect– jointly between Pete Lawrence and Calum Hay 
12.00 – 12.45 Panel Question and Answer session 
12.45 – 12.50 Thanks and Close (followed by lunch) 
 
There could be interpretation panels at this event to showcase ideas and provide information, with the 
opportunity to have a panel available for leaving feedback on the event. A post-box could be provided 
requesting business cards / contact details so that a distribution list of people can be created to use in the 
future for further communications. 

 
Printed materials 
 
A limited supply of printed material could be made available if required, but it is envisaged that most 
information will be communicated electronically or verbally. Printed versions could be posted on request. 
Other printed materials could include window vinyls, interpretation panels, roller banners; lamp-post 
banners, billboard notices; use of which would be time limited to the project and therefore may not be 
appropriate for the scale of this project. 

 
Online 
 
A dedicated webpage can be developed to deal with any activities associated with the single site 
development which can be updated as and when new information arises.  
 
Aberdeen City Council’s own internal web portals for promotion of events including the Zone and 
Classified Ads could also be utilised. Similarly harnessing the potential to circulate information in the same 
way through other organisations own internal portals. 
 
Similarly section message boards / blogs and email distribution lists can be used as tools to relay 
information. 

 
Social media 
 
Use of Aberdeen City Council’s own twitter feeds, Facebook pages, and Corporate Governance blog to 
communicate information on the project and to direct people to the online resources available.  
 
Consideration should be given to webinars and podcasts, allowing those stakeholders not available to 
attend the event to have access to visual media detailing the project further.  
 
Site visits 
 
A useful tool in raising awareness is the opportunity to show stakeholders physical locations or undertake 
tours. This can enable individuals to gain a clearer perspective of the project and what it entails. This can 
be instrumental in obtaining valuable support and can be effective at putting projects into context. 
 
A tour of the proposed locations could be scheduled, or this could wait until an approved site is known. Of 
equal importance could be showing stakeholders similar infrastructure elsewhere; again allowing clearer 
understanding of the development opportunities ahead of us. 
 

Page 57



 

 

Site visits would require substantial organisation depending on the locality and the site / infrastructure 
being visited.  
 
8. Timings 
 
This communications plan will be effective from the point of approval until the single site location has been 
identified. It will be flexible in terms of scheduling dates, but milestones will be required as part of the 
planning process. It is suggested that once a site has been purchased and planning commences, further 
communications are undertaken. The communications and engagement plan looks at each stage of the 
project and determines communication and engagement activities that need to happen around these. This 
will be an active document and will evolve over the course of the project to reflect the needs of the 
stakeholders at each stage. 
 

 
Activity Date Estimate cost / resource 

Public Relations 
and Media 

Ongoing throughout the project 
with more activity near the half 
day event and when a decision 
on site location is made. 

Time to write articles and liaise with the media 
team. Free to provide press releases. 

Face to face Undertaken regularly throughout 
the project. 

Free. 
Advertising  £350-1500 for advertorials dependent on 

artwork and spread. Hire of a photographer 
could be between £500-1000 per day, unless 
this can be done in house. 

Publications To coincide with the deadlines of 
those relevant publications. 

Free for internal publications, just content to 
draft. 

Half day event Either before or after preferred 
site confirmation. 

Time to co-ordinate and costs associated with 
providing a venue, catering, travel and 
subsistence for speakers. Costs currently 
unknown. 

Printed materials Production will vary and will be 
timed to coincide with specific 
aspects of the project e.g. half 
day event. 

Dependent on the printed media ranging from 
£470 for a 2 page printed A5 leaflet (1000 
units) to £2000 for a 4 week media billboard. 
This does not include costs associated with 
development. 

Online Project commencement, with 
regular updates throughout the 
project timeframe. 

Development of static site. Could be done in 
house possibly for free, alternatively £1000-
1500 for up to a 10 page site. With an hourly 
rate between £40-80 for design, layout, 
programming etc. 

Social media Regular updates on all online 
social media throughout the 
project timeframe. 
 
Upload of webinar / podcast after 
half day events. 

Updating corporate twitter feeds, Facebook, 
blogs and web content can be undertaken for 
Free. Development of webinars and podcast, 
cost unknown at this stage. 

Site visits Could be done to show 
stakeholders all locations or once 
an approved site is gained. 

Time to co-ordinate. Costs required for hire of 
transport, will vary dependent on size of 
vehicle.  

 
 
 
9. Monitoring and Evaluation  
 
The key measures of success in terms of our communication and engagement will primarily be through ad 
hoc feedback from both internal and external stakeholders and through the tone and type of questions 
being asked by those directly impacted.   

 

Page 58



 

 

A feedback loop will be available within every communication so that we gather comments from staff and 
evaluate how effective the communication has been, and also to encourage two way communication. 
 
There are a couple of quantitative methods that we can use to ‘check’ the success of the communication 
and engagement activities.  These are: 

• The number of emails sent requesting information as a result of communication being sent; 
• The number of questions being asked at briefings by internal staff to Director/HoS/Project team; 
• The number of comments from stakeholders through a range of mediums including, telephone, 

face to face and emails. 
 
There are also few qualitative methods that could be used to ensure that communication is achieving what 
it is set out to: 

• Opinions expressed in meetings; 
• Focus/discussion groups; 
• Surveys. 

 
Irrespective of the monitoring and evaluation undertaken, mechanisms will need to be put in place to 
record the data throughout the life of the project. 

 
 
10. Future considerations 
 
Upon approved site acquisition communications and engagement will be required, with further 
development of the communications strategy and associated implementation plans. 
 
Consideration should be given to the following: 
 

• Web cam – This could be located on the construction site and hosted as a live feed onto the waste 
infrastructure web page. This could be positioned to show case progress of the waste 
infrastructure throughout the construction phases. 

• Further site visits – Visits to the construction site could be provided to show stakeholders progress 
with the development. This would be done in conjunction with the building contractor and in line 
with corporate Health and Safety guidance.  

• Update event – Another half day event could be organised to report back on progress to those 
who attended the initial event; giving the opportunity to feedback and update stakeholders. 

• Open surgeries in the community – Members of the project team could attend open meetings in 
the communities affected by the development; providing an opportunity to directly engage with the 
wider public. 

• Radio coverage – Not necessarily adverts but the opportunity for a discussion over air on how the 
new development will affect the City. 

• Interactive learning centre – A centre could be built alongside the Energy from Waste plant and 
new collection depot. This could be used as an educational centre where stakeholders can visit to 
gain an understanding of the new infrastructure and gain more understanding on sustainable 
waste management. 

 
 
 
 
 

 
11. Further information 
 
Further information on the project itself and the communications strategy is available from the following 
personnel: 
 
Peter Lawrence  
Waste & Recycling Manager – Project Manager 
plawrence@aberdeencity.gov.uk 

Page 59



 

 

01224 489331 
 
Callum Hay 
Zero Waste Project Coordinator – Project Consultant 
CaHay@aberdeencity.gov.uk 
07930 509 850 
 
Amy Gray 
Waste Strategy Manager – Communications Strategy  
amgray@aberdeencity.gov.uk 
01224 489129 
 
Stephen Christie 
Communications Officer – Communications Support / Public Relations and Media 
stchristie@aberdeencity.gov.uk 
01224 522099 
 

 

Page 60



Agenda Item 9

Page 61

Exempt information as described in paragraph(s) 9 of Schedule 7A
of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973.

Document is Restricted



Page 100

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minute of Previous Meeting of 5 December 2012
	4 Internal Waste Minimisation Policy - referred for information by the Enterprise, Planning and Infrastructure Committee of 19 March 2013
	EPI.13.010 - Internal Waste Minimisation Policy
	EPI.13.010 - Internal Waste Minimisation Policy - Appendix

	5 Update on the Business Case for Energy from Waste Procurement
	6 Update on Waste Management Services Contract Variation
	7 Draft Communication Plan
	9 Sites for Waste and Recycling Infrastructure

